
 

 

MONDAY, June 19, 2017 
7:00 PM 

2nd Floor Council Chambers 
1095 Duane Street  Astoria OR 97103 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. REPORTS OF COUNCILORS 
 
4. CHANGES TO AGENDA 
 
5. CONSENT 

The items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be adopted by one 
motion unless a member of the City Council requests to have any item considered separately. 
Members of the community may have an item removed if they contact the City Manager by 
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. 
 
a) City Council Minutes May 30, 2017 
b) Arts and Cultural Program Grant Approval – Promote Astoria (Finance) 
c) Community Organization Grants Approvals for Distribution (Finance) 
d) Promote Astoria Funds Agreement for Professional Services with Astoria-Warrenton Chamber 
e) Promote Astoria Funds Agreement for Professional Services with Astoria Downtown Historic District 

Association (ADHDA) (Finance) 
f) Agreement for Professional Services with Clatsop Economic Development Resources (CEDR)  
g) ABC Transcription Services, Inc., Contract Renewal (Finance) 
h) CSO Program Modeling Support Contract for Professional Services Renewal (Public Works)  
i) Fuel System Replacement Project Final Pay Adjustment (Public Works)  

 
6.       REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

All agenda items are open for public comment following deliberation by the City Council. 
Rather than asking for public comment after each agenda item, the Mayor asks that audience 
members raise their hands if they want to speak to the item and they will be recognized. In 
order to respect everyone’s time, comments will be limited to 3 minutes. 
 
a) Public Hearing (A17-01) & First Reading Advance Astoria  (Community Development) 
b) Second Reading & Adoption of Vacation of Portion of Alley Abutting 3115 Harrison and Adjacent 

Lot (Public Works) 
c) Liquor License Application from Bumble Art Studio LLC, doing business as Bumble Art Studio, 

located at 230 10th Street, Astoria for a New Outlet for a Limited On--Premises Sales License  
d) Liquor License Application from Astoria Hospitality Venturer LLC, Doing Business as Astoria 

Riverwalk Inn, Located at 400 Industry, Astoria for a New Outlet for a Limited On—Premises Sales 
License and an Off-Premises Sales License (Finance) 

e) Lien Foreclosure Approval Resolution Request (City Attorney and Community Development) 
f) End of Fiscal Year Budget Adjustment Resolution (Finance) 
g) Discussion to Implement Parks and Recreation Fee (Parks) 

 
7. NEW BUSINESS & MISCELLANEOUS, PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA) 

AGENDA 
 ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL 



 
 

CITY OF ASTORIA 
   Founded 1811 ● Incorporated 1856 

 
 
 
 
June 14, 2017 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
TO: MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM:  BRETT ESTES, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ASTORIA CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF JUNE 19, 2017 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Item 5(a):  City Council Minutes May 30, 2017 
 

The minutes of the City Council meetings of May 30, 2017 are 
enclosed for review. Unless there are any corrections, it is 
recommended that Council approve these minutes. 

 
Item 5(b): Arts and Cultural Program Grant Approval – Promote Astoria 

(Finance) 
 
City Code Section 8.045.18 states “Organizations receiving funds from the 
Promote Astoria Fund shall enter into a contract with the City that will 
include a scope of work and budget to be approved annually by the 
Astoria City Council.  The contract will designate how the funds will be 
expended by contracting organizations.”  Each year the Arts and Cultural 
sub-committee recommends distributions of Promote Astoria Funds to the 
Budget Committee, based on applications to the City and available funds.  
Applications were approved by a subcommittee of the Budget Committee 
to recommend distribution to the Budget Committee, distributions were 
approved by the Budget Committee and adopted as part of the FY 17-18 
Budget by Council at on June 5, 2017.  It is recommended Council 
approve disbursement of the Arts and Cultural Programs funds as 
recommended and approved in the adopted Fiscal Year 2017-2018 
budget, utilizing the disbursement letter attached. 
 

Item 5(c): Community Organization Grants Approvals for Distribution (Finance) 
 
Community Organizations apply for City Grant funds which are available 
through the General Fund. 

  



x:\data1\julie\manager\agenda\city council\6-19-2017\website\agenda memo 6-19-2017.doc  

The recommended distributions incorporated into Adopted 2017-18 
Budget are as follows:  

501(c)(3) Organization 
17-18  

Grant Amount 
Astoria Alano Club $          1,000 
Astoria Warming Center 4,000 
Clatsop CASA Program, Inc.  4,000 
Clatsop Community Action                                15,000 
Friends of the Armory 1,040 
The Harbor, Inc.                   8,000 
Helping Hands Reentry Outreach Centers                                   8,000 
Lower Columbia Hispanic Council        7,000 
Senior Citizens Services of Astoria 6,000 

Total $  54,040 
 

It is recommended Council approve disbursements of the Community 
Organization – Social Services Grant funds as recommended and 
approved in the Adopted Fiscal Year 2017-2018 budget, utilizing the 
suggested disbursement letter. 
 

Item 5(d): Promote Astoria Funds Agreement for Professional Services with 
Astoria-Warrenton Chamber (Finance) 
 
City Code Section 8.045.18 states “Organizations receiving funds from the 
Promote Astoria Fund shall enter into a contract with the City that will 
include a scope of work and budget to be approved annually by the 
Astoria City Council.  The contract will designate how the funds will be 
expended by contracting organizations.”   

 
An agreement for Astoria-Warrenton Chamber of Commerce for Visitor 
Center Services in the budgeted amount of $ 125,000 and Lower 
Columbia Tourism Committee professional services in the budgeted 
amount of $ 180,750 has been reviewed by the City Attorney and is 
attached for Council consideration.   

 
It is recommended the City Council approve execution of the Agreement 
for Professional Service with Astoria-Warrenton Area Chamber of 
Commerce. 
 

Item 5(e): Promote Astoria Funds Agreement for Professional Services with 
Astoria Downtown Historic District Association (ADHDA) (Finance) 
 
City Code Section 8.045.18 states “Organizations receiving funds from the 
Promote Astoria Fund shall enter into a contract with the City that will 
include a scope of work and budget to be approved annually by the 
Astoria City Council.  The contract will designate how the funds will be 
expended by contracting organizations.”   

 



x:\data1\julie\manager\agenda\city council\6-19-2017\website\agenda memo 6-19-2017.doc  

An agreement in the budgeted amount of $ 35,000 for Astoria Downtown 
Historic District Association (ADHDA) has been reviewed by the City 
Attorney and is attached for Council consideration.   

 
It is recommended the City Council approve execution of the Agreement 
for Professional Service with Astoria Downtown Historic District 
Association (ADHDA). 
 

Item 5(f): Agreement for Professional Services with Clatsop Economic 
Development Resources (CEDR) (Finance) 
 
In prior years the City Council has requested a contract with Clatsop 
Economic Development Resources for their economic development 
services. Funding sources for the Clatsop Economic Development 
Resources (CEDR) agreement are included in the budget and will be paid 
out accordingly from the following funds: 

 
 General Fund (Non-Interdepartmental)  $   3,320 
 Astoria East Urban Renewal District Fund $   3,340 
 Astoria West Urban Renewal District Fund $   3,340 
  Total    $ 10,000  
 

It is recommended the City Council approve execution of the Agreement 
for Professional Service with Clatsop Economic Development Resources 
(CEDR) for Fiscal Year 2017-2018. 

 
Item 5(g): ABC Transcription Services, Inc., Contract Renewal (Finance) 

 
The City of Astoria has contracted with ABC Transcription Services, Inc., 
(ABC) since April 2010 for the transcription of meeting minutes for the City 
Council, Planning Commission, Historic Landmarks Commission, Design 
Review Committee, Parks Board and Library Board. The current contract 
expires on June 30, 2017. ABC is proposing no rate increase for Fiscal 
Year 2017-2018. A total of $ $25,000 has been allocated as part of the 
Fiscal Year 2017-2018 budget for these services which is the same 
amount budgeted for Fiscal Year 2016-2017.  ABC has been both 
responsive and timely. The draft contract has been reviewed and 
approved as to form by City Attorney Henningsgaard. It is recommended 
that Council approve a Contract for Professional Services with ABC 
Transcription Services, Inc., for the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018. 
 

Item 5(h): Authorization CSO Modeling Consultant Contract Renewal with HDR 
(Public Works) 

 
An essential tool for the success of the combined sewer overflow (CSO) 
program is the computerized hydrologic and hydraulic model that is used 
to delineate and scope each CSO project. This model contains important 
information regarding the storm and sewer infrastructure, geographic 
areas that flow to each pipe segment, rainfall information, and historic 



x:\data1\julie\manager\agenda\city council\6-19-2017\website\agenda memo 6-19-2017.doc  

flows that are used to predict the system response after CSO project 
completion. There is ongoing maintenance and calibration that must occur 
to the model so that it closely replicates actual conditions in the field. 
Determining the scope of future CSO projects is accomplished by a 
specialized CSO modeling engineer who analyzes the data generated by 
the model, and then recommends the most cost effective approach to 
meet the overflow criteria that is established by the Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ). The scope of the project is then given to a 
design engineering consultant to produce plans and specifications for 
bidding the construction of the project.  

 
In April 2012, Council authorized a contract for CSO Modeling Support 
Services to HDR with the option of annual renewal of this contract. During 
the past five years, HDR has updated and refined the CSO collection 
system model, identified additional monitoring needs to further 
characterize flows for future projects, completed necessary 
documentation to submit to the Department of Environmental Quality 
(DEQ) to verify implementation of completed projects and began 
developing preliminary scopes for future projects.  

 
HDR has provided a scope of work and estimated budget of $74,976 for 
July 2017 through June 2018. Staff has reviewed the scope and fee and 
find the proposal to be appropriate and reasonable. The contract has 
been reviewed by City Attorney Blair Henningsgaard and approved as to 
form.  Funds are available through the Public Works Improvement Fund.  

 
It is recommended that City Council renew the contract for CSO Modeling 
Support Services with HDR for a total not to exceed amount of $74,976. 
  

Item 5(i): Fuel System Replacement Project Final Pay Adjustment (Public 
Works) 

 
The Fuel System Replacement Project is intended to provide the most 
cost effective, sustainable way to provide fuel for the City fleet.  The new 
fuel system includes new above ground fuel storage (6,000 gallon 
unleaded and 4,000 gallon diesel), associated piping and appurtenances, 
2 new fuel pumps, and an updated fuel management system.  The 
existing fuel tanks have been removed or decommissioned as part of this 
project. 

 
In July, Council authorized staff to award a contract to 4C’s Environmental, 
Inc. (4Cs) to complete the project for $231,157.  The first pay adjustment 
primarily covered the cost of the Spill Prevention Control and Containment 
Plan (SPCC) at a cost $26,567.50. 

 
During removal and decommissioning of the existing underground fuel 
tanks, contaminated soil was encountered.  4Cs took appropriate steps to 
categorize, remove, dispose and report the contamination to the Oregon 
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ). The Final Pay Adjustment 



x:\data1\julie\manager\agenda\city council\6-19-2017\website\agenda memo 6-19-2017.doc  

covers the cost of this additional, unanticipated work.  The Fuel Tank 
Replacement Project is budgeted in the Capital Improvement and funds 
are available for the additional $21,316.55 associated with the Final Pay 
Adjustment.  While this amount is within the City Manager’s new spending 
authority, it was brought to the Council because the first change order was 
approved by them.  

  
It is recommended that Council authorize the Final Pay Adjustment in the 
amount of $21,316.55. 

 
REGULAR CALENDAR 
 
Item 6(a): Public Hearing (A17-01) & First Reading Advance Astoria  

(Community Development) 
 

The Comprehensive Plan is a land use planning document that describes 
how the city will grow and develop over a twenty year horizon and 
addresses twenty statewide land use planning goals, including Goal 9 – 
Economic Development. The City Council adopted a FY 15-16 goal to 
“promote positive economic development through strengthening 
partnerships.” The “Advance Astoria” initiative is in direct response to this 
goal that also provides an opportunity to update the Comprehensive Plan. 
In October 2016, Advance Astoria was launched with a public event at Fort 
George Brewery Lovell Showroom. A public hearing was held on May 23, 
2017 with the Planning Commission to consider amendments to the 
Comprehensive Plan Chapter 190-210 and a “Future Industrial Sites” 
map. After considering the findings of fact, and public testimony, the 
Planning Commission recommended approval to the City Council on May 
23. A public hearing before the City Council has been noticed for June 19.  
It is recommended that the Council open the hearing and take public 
testimony. If Council is in agreement, the Council can hold a 1st reading of 
the Ordinance. 

 
Item 6(b): Second Reading & Adoption of Vacation of Portion of Alley Abutting 

3115 Harrison and Adjacent Lot (Public Works) 
 

 The City has received a request from Larry Haskell, for the vacation of a 20 X 
100 foot portion of the alley that abuts his property at 3115 Harrison (Tax Lot 
8099CA10000) and also his undeveloped lot (Tax Lot 8099CA10100) on the 
south side of the alley, Lots 6 & 7, Block 63, Port of Upper Astoria.  Mr. 
Haskell would like to obtain the square footage necessary to potentially 
construct a duplex on the property. 

 
 Per City Code 2.290 Authority to Make an Assessment staff calculated the 

real land value using the County Assessor’s land value for properties 
surrounding the portion of alleyway and calculating an average per square 
foot value of properties as $6.87. As has been the past practice of the City, 
staff is proposing that an assessment of $1,374.90 (10%) of the real land 
value ($13,748.99) be considered for the vacation of 2000 square feet of the 
alleyway.   



x:\data1\julie\manager\agenda\city council\6-19-2017\website\agenda memo 6-19-2017.doc  

 
 At their meeting of June 5, 2017, 2017, the City Council conducted a public 

hearing and first reading of the ordinance of vacation. 
 
 It is recommended that the Astoria City Council conduct the second reading, 

and consider adoption the ordinance to vacate of a portion of the alley that 
abuts 3115 Harrison.   

 
Item 6(c): Liquor License Application from Bumble Art Studio LLC, doing 

business as Bumble Art Studio, located at 230 10th Street, Astoria 
for a New Outlet for a Limited On--Premises Sales License (Finance) 

 
A liquor license application has been filed by Chelsea Mattingly for Bumble 
Art Studio LLC doing business as Bumble Art Studio.  This application is a 
New Outlet for a Limited On-Premises Sales License.  The appropriate 
departments have reviewed the application and it is recommended that 
Council consider approval of the application. 
 

Item 6(d): Liquor License Application from Astoria Hospitality Venturer LLC, 
Doing Business as Astoria Riverwalk Inn, Located at 400 Industry, 
Astoria for a New Outlet for a Limited On—Premises Sales License 
and an Off-Premises Sales License (Finance) 

 
A liquor license application has been filed by William Orr and Chester 
Trabucco for Astoria Hospitality Venturer LLC doing business as Astoria 
Riverwalk Inn.  This application is a New Outlet for a Limited On-Premises 
Sales License and an Off-Premises Sales License.  The appropriate 
departments have reviewed the application and it is recommended that 
Council consider approval of the application. 

 
Item 6(e): Lien Foreclosure Approval Resolution Request (City Attorney and 

Community Development) 
 

Long term code enforcement efforts have failed to yield an appropriate 
and acceptable response from the owner of 4867 Birch (Leroy Olvey) in 
the Alderbrook neighborhood. Through repeated written notices, warnings, 
citations, collections attempts, declarations as a nuisance property, and 
assigned liens, the City has taken all available steps to have the property 
owner abate the nuisance violations. The owner has failed in each case to 
correct the violations or respond to the written notices sent both certified 
and regular US mail. Staff has tried repeatedly to visit the owner at his 
known residence over the last two years. Beginning in 2014, the Municipal 
Court has levied fines totaling $58,500.00. The City Attorney filed a lien on 
real property and requested payment in February 2016 that has not 
resulted in any action. The first action requires City Council approval, be 
made by resolution, and be entered in the electronic lien docket of the 
City. This approval is required by City Code section 5.726 (A). It is 
recommended that the Council consider adoption of the resolution to 
resolve a longstanding code enforcement issue. 

 



x:\data1\julie\manager\agenda\city council\6-19-2017\agenda memo 6-19-2017.doc  

Item 6(f): End of Fiscal Year Budget Adjustment Resolution (Finance) 
 

ORS 294.463 provides guidance for the transfer of appropriations within a 
fund, when authorized by resolution of the governing body. 

 
At the time the budget was originally appropriated, the Personal Services 
included appropriations for an Aquatic Center Coordinator but it was later 
approved to hire an Aquatic Center Supervisor.  This amount along with 
required hours to operate the pool requires additional appropriations for 
the Aquatic Center in the amount of $ 100,000.  Appropriations are 
available in Parks Operations - Maintenance due to anticipated 
expenditures which have not been incurred.   

 
Based on analysis it is estimated the budgeted transfer from the General 
Fund to Parks Operation Fund is sufficient for the current fiscal year 
operations.   

 
Additionally, a transfer within the General Fund is required for $ 7,000 to 
the City Manager Department in order to cover costs associated with 
retirement of the Executive Assistant.  At the time the budget was 
originally prepared and then adopted the additional expenditures 
associated with retirement of a long-term employee were not anticipated.  
Funds are available within the Municipal Court budget for this transfer. 

 
It is recommended that Council approve a resolution transferring 
appropriation of $ 100,000 from Parks Operations - Maintenance to Parks 
Operations - Aquatics within the Parks Operation Fund # 158 and 
transferring appropriation of $ 7,000 from Municipal Court to City Manager 
within the General Fund # 001. 

 
Item 6(g): Discussion to Implement Parks and Recreation Fee (Parks) 

 
During the June 5th City Council meeting, City Council directed staff to 
prepare an ordinance and resolution to implement a $3 per water meter 
Parks and Recreation Fee for residential customers. This item is on the 
agenda to allow citizens to provide comment on this matter and also allow 
Councilors to dialogue about implementation of a Parks and Recreation 
Fee. Staff will be prepared to discuss this issue and answer questions 
from City Council. 



























































































































































































ADVANCE ASTORIA
A FIVE-YEAR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
STRATEGIC PLAN for the City of Astoria

JUNE 2017

>> advance astoria
A Five-Year Economic Development Strategy 
for the City of Astoria, Oregon



2 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

>> acknowledgements
Advance Astoria has been generously supported by financial assistance provided by the Coastal Zone Management 
Act of 1972, as amended, administered by the Office of Ocean and Coastal Resource Management, National 
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, and the Ocean and Coastal Management Program, Department of Land 
Conservation and Development. Thank you to the Oregon Department of Land Conservation & Development for their 
continued support of strategic land use planning in Astoria. 

Astoria City Council
Tom Brownson
Bruce Jones
Arline LaMear, Mayor 
Zetty Nemlowill
Cindy Price

Astoria Planning Commission
Jennifer Cameron-Lattek
Kent Easom 
Sean Fitzpatrick
Jan Mitchell
Daryl Moore
Dave Pearson, President 
Frank Spence

City of Astoria Staff
Kevin A. Cronin, AICP, Community Development Director
Brett Estes, City Manager 
Nancy Ferber, City Planner
Anna Stamper, Administrative Assistant
Sherri Williams, Administrative Assistant (Retired)

Technical Advisory Committee
Denise Löfman, Columbia River Estuary Study Task 
 Force (CREST)
Tom Hogue, Oregon Department of Land Conservation 
 and Development (DLCD)

Jeff Hazen, Sunset Empire Transportation District 
Shawna Sykes, Oregon Employment Department
Camille Padilla, WorkSource Oregon
Christina DeWitt, Oregon State University Seafood Lab
Ken Shonkwiler, Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT)
Heather Hansen, Clatsop County Community Development Dept.

Advance Party
Andrew Bornstein, Bornstein Seafoods
Alisa Dunlap, Pacific Power
Jorge Gutierrez, Lower Columbia Hispanic Council
Jim Knight (Gary Kobes), Port of Astoria
David Kroening / Josh Allison, Buoy Beer / Reach Break Brewing
Kevin Leahy / David Reid, CEDR / SBDC 
Mary McArthur, Col Pac
Leslie McCray - Owner, Sweaterheads
Walt Postlewait / Scott Huddleston - CRAFT3
Jim Servino / Skip Hauke, Astoria Warrenton Chamber of Commerce
Erik Thorson, Columbia Memorial Hospital
JoAnn Zahn, VP of Finance, Clatsop Community College

Project Consultants
Spencer Cohen, Community Attributes, Inc.
Kristina Gallant, AICP, Community Attributes, Inc.
Mark Goodman, Community Attributes, Inc.
Bryan Lobel, AICP, Community Attributes, Inc.
Chris Mefford, AICP, Community Attributes, Inc.
Elliot Weiss, AICP, Community Attributes, Inc.



3Foundational Strategies

>> contents

Foundational Strategies & Actions

Housing..................................................................................................14

Workforce Development.........................................................................16

Branding & Identity.................................................................................18

Development & Permitting......................................................................20

Placemaking...........................................................................................22

Infrastructure..........................................................................................24

Partnerships & Organization..................................................................26

Craft Beverage & Fermentation..............................................................28

Education, Medicine & R&D.............................................................. ....30

Maritime.......................................................................................... .......32

Microenterprise.......................................................................................34

Seafood Processing................................................................................36

Batch Strategies & Actions

one

Guided By A Vision......................................................................................5

two

Background & Purpose................................................................................6

three

eight

four

nine

five

ten

six

eleven

seven

twelve

5



4 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

[ BLANK}



5

At its heart, the Advance Astoria project refined and reinforced a community vision for what 
Astoria’s economy can and should be. This vision has earned broad community support 
and represents a guiding principle for goal-setting and planning for the economic future of Astoria.

Astoria is the North Coast center for economic 
development and international commerce and seeks 
to be the sustainable leader to support family wage 
jobs, entrepreneurs, and private investment.

Astoria will work with its partners to grow 200 high 
wage jobs by 2021 and expand economic 
opportunities and prosperity for all Astorians.

>> guided by a vision

“
”

This five-year, action-oriented plan is designed to provide near-term guidance as City of Astoria 
staff and partners, as well as local institutions, businesses, entrepreneurs, non-profit organizations 
and others work to make this vision a reality.



6 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

A Batch Strategy: Growing Our Economy Smarter
An industry-based approach to economic development is referred to as a “cluster strategy.” However, here in Astoria we 
do things differently. Astoria makes things in batches — whether it’s world class beer, warm and fuzzy hats to brave the 
weather, or fresh-caught seafood. 

A “batch strategy” then is strategy rooted in the specific needs and attributes of a group of geographically concentrated, 
inter-related businesses. Companies, institutions, and entrepreneurs that locate in a batch benefit from a skilled labor 
force, increased innovation, coordinated advocacy efforts, synergistic supply chains, and a cross pollination of knowl-
edge. A batch strategy can facilitate interaction in ways that establish competitive advantages through the creation and 
incorporation of new knowledge into products and services, and the processes that produce them. 

The City of Astoria understands and embraces the importance of building strong connections among its industry batch-
es, and that’s why we support initiatives that strengthen cooperation and competitive advantages for Astoria-based 
companies. 

As a result, the City of Astoria has developed a batch strategy that targets traded sectors — sectors with markets 
outside the region, bringing new money into the community. The strategy also targets knowledge-based sectors that 
attract a highly skilled labor pool, growing research and development functions within local institutions. Lastly, Astoria 
supports home-grown industries that start in a garage, a backyard, or in a research lab. Astoria will continue to support 
home-based businesses and grow its local entrepreneurial ecosystem to support startups, spinoffs, and cultivate the 
next generation of businesses that are sustainable and competitive in a global marketplace.  

>> background & purpose



7Foundational Strategies

Community Engagement
This economic development strategy began with rigorous data analysis and the creation of an Economic Opportunities 
Analysis (EOA), including a detailed land capacity analysis that meets the requirements of the State of Oregon. The project 
also included robust community engagement, the results of which helped to direct the development of the strategies and 
actions contained in this document. 

The City employed multiple engagement methods in order to capture a significant number and wide variety of respondents 
and to ensure that all perspectives were represented. These methods included the following:

• The creation of the Advance Party, a technical 
advisory panel that meets periodically, reviews 
and advises on work products, represents critical 
industries and works to engage the broader 
public.

• The hosting of two community forums to 
disseminate project information and technical 
data to stakeholders and to obtain feedback from 
members of the community. Though the forums 
are primarily intended to convey information 
about the project to the community, comments 
have been encouraged and accepted and 
integrated into the data profile.

• Panel discussions featuring a diverse array 
of business and industry leaders have been 
scheduled to follow select forums and Advance 
Party meetings. The public is invited to attend these 
discussions, which generate interest in the project 
and provide insight into economic development 
challenges, as well as innovative solutions to these 
challenges, from other locations in the region.

Participants at an Advance Astoria public forum cast their vote 
for economic development priorities.

>> 

>> 

>> 



8 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

• An online and print survey widely distributed and promoted at the community forums. The survey resulted in more 
than 90 individual responses to 13 unique questions about economic development challenges and opportunities in 
Astoria, and the results will be leveraged for the development of strategic priorities and tailored actions.

• A pop-up display was deployed at community events and meetings to engage people who were unable to attend 
the community forums and other activities. The three panel display was paired with a “postcard from the future”, 
where participants could share their specific and general visions for Astoria’s economic future.

• A series of five focus groups were conducted with key representatives of local industries to understand the factors 
affecting known industry clusters in Astoria. These intensive focus groups included up to eight participants and 
focused on industry-specific challenges and opportunities directly relevent to an economic development strategy. 
Numerous follow-up interviews were conducted to supplement focus group participation.

>> 

>> 

>> 

From March through June of 2017, the Advance 
Astoria project engaged hundreds of Astoria 
residents, business owners, employees, 
entrepreneurs and other stakeholders to 
contribute insights and ideas for economic 
development.



9Foundational Strategies

Proceeding from the Data
The aforementioned Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA) evaluated 
socio-economic data, market data, and economic development trends at multiple 
scales and developed a forecast-based estimate of the demand for develop-
able and redevelopable sites in Astoria. This estimate of demand was reconciled 
with an estimate of the supply of these sites based on the City of Astoria and 
Clatsop County’s inventory of parcels and constraints to provide a quantitative, 
place-based understanding of local opportunities for growth. The data and 
analytics also highlighted a number of important strategic opportunities and 
challenges for economic growth, diversification, sustainability and equity in the 
City of Astoria and surrounding region. 

The following excerpts summarize key findings from the analysis.

After the recession in 2009, the world economy has rebounded unevenly, with 
robust centers of growth emerging in Asian markets. China’s growth, which has 
paced the planet for the last several years, is slowing, and the potential for a 
new wave of protectionist policies adds to an uncertain future for trade, 
especially in domestic regional economies that trade extensively with China 
and other Asian countries. China accounts for the vast majority of Port 
of Astoria exports.

The U.S. economy has generally improved since the recession, with decreased 
unemployment and increased real GDP. However, wages have been stagnant. 

Northwest Oregon, like much of the Pacific Northwest, is experiencing a prolonged 
decline in resource-based employment. Some of these industries, such as sea-
food processing, are likely to maintain a strong presence in Astoria into the future, 
while others may subside. New economic drivers will emerge, especially as a result of 
cross-pollination from larger metros like Portland.

Global & National Trends

Regional Trends



10 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

The largest industry in Astoria, by far, is educational services, health care and social assistance. These jobs often pay 
good wages, and Astoria also benefits from relatively high levels of educational attainment. Nevertheless, anecdotal evi-
dence suggests that housing affordability is a key issue.

The forecast indicates that employment in Astoria will grow by about 1% annually, adding about 1,400 net new jobs by 
2040. This could require about 125 acres of of developable and redevelopable land in Astoria. This study suggests that 
Astoria currently has enough land to meet this need, though some rezoning and intensification may be required to ac-
commodate all new growth.

Local Trends

Land Supply & Demand

Map of Astoria’s “Meds & Eds” cluster of local 
medical and educational institutions and related 
organizations and businesses.



11

Pop-up displays presented key data to describe 
Astoria's historic economic drivers and current 
economic challenges.



12 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

strategies & actions >> 



13

Navigating This Document
The following section presents strategies, actions, and supporting information aimed at diversifying, growing, and sustaining 
Astoria’s economy for the next five years. These strategies and actions benefit Astoria’s economic foundations, but also 
focus on specific, target industry “batches” that hold particular promise for Astoria. The section also presents supporting 
information to spur implementation, including “quick wins” — aimed at developing rapid momentum and excitement 
around individual strategies — lead and supporting actors, and instructive case studies. 

One Strategy per Focus Area is 
listed at the beginning of each sec-
tion. Strategies represent a cohesive 
approach to achieving a goal and 
consist of a number of specific, 
inter-related actions. 

The plan contains 12 Focus Areas, 
including 7 Foundational, and 5 Batch 
Focus Areas. Color-coded icon tabs 
and titles distinguish each.

Actions are where the rubber hits the 
road in this plan. Specific, implementable 
tactical measures are highlighted and 
organized numerically.  

Actions denoted as “Quick Wins” are  
marked by a stopwatch icon.

Lead actors and Partners suggest 
key organizations and partnerships 
for successful implementation.

On some pages, Case Studies are 
included to offer comparative 
examples from other locations.

CASE STUDY



14 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

Astoria Housing Strategy

Housing

Housing Typologies

Foundational >> Strategy 1  Expand the supply of affordable and market rate housing in Astoria  

Use the forthcoming Astoria Housing Strategy to expand 
housing options for all Astorians

Lead: City of Astoria 
Partners: Clatsop Economic Development Resources (CEDR); Craft3

Lead: North Coast Building Industry Association
Partners: Astoria Makers, Astoria High School; Clatsop Community College

Explore the viability of new housing types through workforce 
training partnerships that leverage construction trades

>> one

Action 1 .1

Action 1.2



15Foundational Strategies

Demand for housing in Astoria far outstrips supply; the lack of available housing units to meet demand across a range of affordability 
levels constrins economic development by making it difficult for qualified workers to find places to live. Source: Community Attributes

Seasonal Co-Housing

Lead: TBD
Partners: Port of Astoria; Seafood Batch Firms

Explore the feasibility of private sector co-housing programs and other extended stay 
lodging options for seasonal or specialty workers in resource and related industries

Action 1.3

foundational



16 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

Online Clearinghouse

Workforce Development

Foundational >> Strategy 2  Leverage Astoria’s significant educational resources to better 
meet the needs of local industries

Create an online clearinghouse to centralize resources 
and information related to workforce training and development 
programs through OSU Extension, Clatsop Community 
College’s Marine & Environmental Research & Training 
Station (MERTS), local and regional public schools and 
other institutions

Lead: TBD
Partners: Astoria School District; CEDR; CCC; Oregon 
Employment Dept.; Workforce Development Board

>> two

Action 2 .1

Clatsop Community College in Astoria enjoys a close rela-
tionship with the community, adapting programs to needs, 
offering degrees & certificates in a variety of disciplines, 
and enriching the region’s unique cultural offerings. 
Source: Clatsop County Community College



17Foundational Strategies

Scholarship Funding

Lead: Clatsop Community College
Partners: Scholarships Inc.

Identify funding sources for scholarship programs targeting skilled work-
force  development related to Astoria’s target batches

Action 2.3

Internships & Apprenticeships

Lead: TBD
Partners: Astoria School District; CEDR; CCC; Oregon Employment Dept.; 
Workforce Development Board; Educational Service District

Partner with local industries and businesses to expand internship and 
apprenticeship programs to match local employer needs

Action 2.2

foundational



18 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

An Astoria Brand

Branding & Identity

Foundational >> Strategy 3   Develop & market an Astoria brand rooted in the City’s unique 
history, character and identity   

Facilitate conversations within industry batches and between key stakeholders 
to identify and develop clear branding initiatives

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Astoria Warrenton Chamber of Commerce; Astoria Downtown Historic 
District Association (ADHDA); Travel Oregon; Batch Leaders

>> three

Action 3.1

Marketing & Messaging

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Chamber of Commerce; ADHDA

Apply Astoria's brand to communications, marketing, and other materials 
to align marketing efforts

Action 3.2



19Foundational Strategies

Communicating Successes

Social Media

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Chamber of Commerce; ADHDA

Lead: Chamber of Commerce
Partners: Batch Leaders

Communicate the City of Astoria's community and economic development 
successes via press releases, interviews, and social media

Coordinate internally and externally to leverage social media channels 
for dissemination of information related to economic development assets, 
success stories, events, and networking and employment opportunities

Action 3.3

Action 3.4

foundational



20 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

Zoning Flexibility

Development & Permitting

Online Permitting

Foundational >> Strategy 4  Ensure that adopted permitting & development regulations
provide adequate flexibility, clarity and predictability to foster economic growth

Continue to provide flexibility in the interpretation and 
application of zoning requirements to encourage adaptive 
reuse and compatible commercial / industrial 
development

Lead: City of Astoria 
Partners: Oregon Department of Land Conservation 
& Development (DLCD)

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Building Codes Division (BCD)

Expand the functionality and utility of Astoria's front-facing 
online permitting and permit tracking system, including 
reference information and other resources

>> four

Action 4 .1

Action 4.2

CASE STUDY



21Foundational Strategies

New Biz Onboarding

Shovel-Ready Certification

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Clatsop Economic Development Resources (CEDR); Astoria Downtown Historical Development 
Association (ADHDA); Astoria Warrenton Chamber of Commerce

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Business Oregon; Department of Environmental 
Quality; Port of Astoria; Private Property Owners

Develop a "Shovel-Ready" certification to focus interest 
and resources on key industrial and commercial 
development sites in Astoria

Develop and implement a coordinated onboarding system for new and small businesses, in coordination with 
Clatsop Economic Development Resources (CEDR), Astoria Downtown Historical Development Association 
(ADHDA), and other partners

foundational
Action 4.3

Action 4.4

Key industrial and commercial development sites in Astoria, 
including the Port Cargo Yard, the Astoria Ford site, and the 
“AgBag” site, could benefit from a “Shovel-Ready Certifi-
cation” to signal readiness of the sites for redevelopment. 
Source: Community Attributes



22 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

Neighborhood Centers

Placemaking

Downtown Public Spaces

Foundational >> Strategy 5  Continue to build on Astoria’s reputation and attraction 
as northwest Oregon’s most authentic and livable city 

Continue to build on retail and service provision 
in Astoria's Uniontown and South Slope neighborhoods

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Transportation Growth Program

Lead: Astoria Downtown Historical Development Association
Partners: TBD

Consolidate, improve, and expand programming of public 
spaces in downtown Astoria; consider re-purposing 
underperforming spaces for commercial spec space

>> five

Action 5.1

Action 5.2
Astoria’s unique character and sense of place is a powerful 
tool for economic development. 



23Foundational Strategies

Facade Improvement

Natural Assets

Arts, Culture & Heritage

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Astoria Downtown Historical Development Association (ADHDA)

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Parks & Recreation; Astoria Warrenton Chamber of Commerce

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Astoria Warrenton Chamber of Commerce

Expand Astoria’s “extreme makeover” matching grant program for continued façade improvement 
in Astoria’s commercial centers

Promote Astoria's natural and recreational assets and enhance livability by expanding eco-tourism 
options available to Astoria visitors and residents

Support Astoria's growing local arts, culture and heritage activities and offerings with marketing, 
space, and facilitation

foundational
Action 5.3

Action 5.4

Action 5.5



24 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

Filtration Capacity

Infrastructure

Foundational >> Strategy 6  Provide the infrastructure necessary to support business retention, 
recruitment, creation and expansion

Ensure the long-term supply of high-quality water in Astoria by planning for adequate filtration capacity

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Infrastructure Finance Authority (IFA)

>> six

Action 6.1

Exhibit from Astoria’s 2013 Transportation System Plan illus-
trating the projected funding gap for aspirational projects 
outlined in the plan.

Exhibit from Astoria’s 2013 Transportation System Plan illus-
trating the projected funding gap for aspirational projects 
outlined in the plan.



25Foundational Strategies

TSP Implementation

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Sunset Empire Transit District; Tongue Point Job 
Corps; Seafood Processing Batch

Identify and secure funding sources for implementation of 
the Transportation System Plan and to expand local and 
regional transit service capacity

Action 6.3

Community Broadband

Lead: City of Astoria (to convene & facilitate)
Partners: Craft3; Port of Astoria; IT Community

Explore community broadband best practices to grow 
reliable high-speed data provision to homes 
and businesses in Astoria

Action 6.2

foundational

CASE STUDY



26 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

Partnerships & Organizations

Foundational >> Strategy 7  Leverage cooperative structures & financing tools to empower 
local businesses, foundations & not-for-profit organizations

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Association of Oregon Non-Profits

>> seven

Made in Astoria

Lead: Astoria Makers
Partners: Astoria Downtown Historical Development Association (ADHDA); 
Astoria Warrenton Chamber of Commerce

Develop & solicit membership in a "Made in Astoria" (or similar) campaign for certification, 
marketing and resources to support local production & technology

Action 7.3

Action 7.2 Funders Network Roundtable
Create a “Funders Network Roundtable” aimed at convening funders from Astoria 
and throughout Oregon to empower local capacity building efforts by Astoria 
foundations & non-profits



27Foundational Strategies

Partnerships & Organizations

Equity Fund

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Craft3

Investigate foundation grants to underwrite an “Equity 
Fund” for small loans or to capitalize existing Revolving 
Loan Fund

Action 7.5

Action 7.4 Commercial Kitchen

Lead: City of Astoria (to convene & facilitate)
Partners: OSU Seafood Lab; Astoria Co-op; North Coast 
Food Web

Facilitate a partnership to assess the feasibility of finding 
or developing a shared commercial kitchen for local val-
ue-added producers

foundational

CASE STUDY



28 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

Fermentation Science Program

Craft Beverage & Fermentation

Lease This Brewery

Batch >> Strategy 8  Leverage existing anchors and other resources to support and grow 
new and existing craft beverage & fermentation sector activity  

Support the creation and/or expansion of a fermentation science or similar 
program at Clatsop Community College with support from Oregon State University

Lead: Clatsop Community College
Partners: Oregon State University

Lead: Batch Leaders
Partners: City of Astoria

Support a shared-equipment incubator concept or “lease this brewery” model 
to support the creation and growth of new craft beverage establishments

>> eight

Action 8.1

Action 8.2



29Batch Strategies

Oregon State University’s Fermentation Science Program. 
Source: Oregon State University

Brewing Coalition

Targeted Recruitment

Lead: Batch Leaders
Partners: Astoria Warrenton Chamber of Commerce

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Astoria Warrenton Chamber of Commerce

Create a “brewing coalition” to share knowledge and 
talent, and foster new initiatives to improve sustainability 
practices

Engage and recruit beverage-makers to complement and 
strengthen existing craft beverage and fermentation batch 
activities in Oregon

batch
Action 8.3

Action 8.4



30 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

Value-Added Production

Education, Medicine and R&D

Batch >> Strategy 9  Strengthen local educational and medical institutions that serve Astoria 
residents, create economic value and contribute to local innovation  

Recruit value-added products and services firms 
and research & development programs that leverage 
traditional North Coast natural resources

Lead: OSU Seafood Lab
Partners: City of Astoria

>> nine

Action 9.1

Action 9.2 Local Training

Lead: Columbia Memorial Hospital
Partners: Clatsop Community College; Oregon State 
University Extension Office

Expand local health care training & education programs

CASE STUDY

Cross-Laminated Timber
Cross-laminated timber (CLT) is a large-scale,
prefabricated, solid engineered wood panel. 

Hydrokinetic Turbine Energy
Rotating devices capture the kinetic energy of a

or river, as it passes across a rotor. The rotor turns 
with the current, creating rotational energy that is 
converted into electricity by a generator.



31Batch Strategies

Hospital Master Plan

Lead: Columbia Memorial Hospital
Partners: City of Astoria

Ensure that Columbia Memorial Hospital can accommodate future growth through a master plan; 
including supportive zoning, targeted capital improvements and other tools

batch

Action 9.3

Action 9.4 Skilled Workforce Recruitment

Lead: Columbia Memorial Hospital
Partners: Clatsop Community College; Oregon State University Extension Office

Connect employers in education and health care to national skilled workforce pools through branding, 
recruitment, relocation incentives and other tools



32 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

Maritime Expansion

Maritime

Batch >> Strategy 10  Expand maritime assets and infrastructure to become a national hub 
for maritime operations, training & related manufacturing 

Identify zoning and infrastructure-related challenges to the expansion of maritime and supporting uses on appropriate 
lands in Astoria

Lead: City of Astoria; CCC
Partners: Batch Leads; Port of Astoria

>> ten

Action 10.1

Support MERTS

Lead: Clatsop Community College
Partners: Port of Astoria, Clatsop

Increase support for MERTS by securing additional land, equipment, faculty & other key resources to expand training 
of workers in the maritime industry cluster & grow program development to meet industry needs

Action 10.3

Action 10.2 Maritime Center of Excellence

Lead: Clatsop Community College
Partners: Federal Delegation

Pursue federal designation as a “Maritime Center of Excellence” for Clatsop Community College’s Marine and Environ-
mental Research and Training Station (MERTS) Campus



33Batch Strategies

Synergistic Maritime

U.S. Coast Guard

Lead: Port of Astoria
Partners: Astoria Warrenton Chamber of Commerce

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: U.S. Coast Guard, Clatsop County, Port of Astoria

Profile up- and down-stream relationships and undertake 
targeted recruitment of synergistic maritime firms, 
including suppliers and distributors to the sector  

Partner with the locally-based U.S. Coast Guard Sector 
Columbia River to identify public sector needs & priorities 
related to local operations & employment

Action 10.4

Action 10.5

batch

Kvichiak Marine’s aluminum boat-building works near the 
small Pacific fishing fleet mooring at Fisherman’s Terminal 
in Seattle, WA. Source: Community Attributes



34 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

Microenterprise
Batch >> Strategy 11  Nurture Astoria’s burgeoning entrepreneurial ecosystem to expand 
and diversify local economic opportunities 

>> eleven

Design & Prototyping Programs

Lead: Astoria Makers
Partners: Clatsop Community College, Astoria Warrenton 
Chamber of Commerce

Establish design & prototyping programs for local entrepreneurs 
in partnership with local maker space and industry educators

Action 11.2

Action 11.1 Astoria Sunday Market

Lead: Astoria Sunday Market
Partners: City of Astoria

Partner with the Astoria Sunday Market to create a strategic 
plan for continued operations and future expansion

Astoria Sunday Market was formed to revitalize historic 
downtown Astoria and to improve the economic viability 
and vitality of farmers, artists, artisans and other small 
business operators in the Pacific Northwest. Source: 
StreamingAround.com



35Batch Strategies

Microenterprise

Action 11.3 Astoria Co-Working Space

Lead: Pier 12
Partners: City of Astoria

Support the creation of a co-working space in Astoria that allows employees and entreprenuers to grow and work untethered

Rural Opportunities Initiative

Lead: City of Astoria
Partners: Business Oregon

Apply for Business Oregon’s Rural Opportunities Initiative to bring more resources to entrepreneurs

Action 11.4

batch



36 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria

Value-Added Products

Seafood Processing

Batch >> Strategy 12  Support strengthening & diversification of seafood processing 
as a lasting economic engine for Astoria and the region 

Identify & expand local production of innovative value-added seafood products, 
including pre-packaged goods

Lead: Batch Leads
Partners: OSU Seafood Lab

>> twelve

Action 12 .1

Supportive Activity

Lead: Batch Leads
Partners: Port of Astoria, City of Astoria

Target recruitment of supporting marine dependent businesses to waterfront, including boat-builders, 
net storage & repair, engine & hydraulic shops, and marine fabrication

Action 12.2



37Batch Strategies

Seafood Processing

Research & Development

Workforce Recruitment

Lead: Batch Leads
Partners: OSU Extension Office

Lead:Batch Leads
Partners: Clatsop Community College; MERTS

Identify research practices that can advance the industry 
and encourage innovation in product development

Aid local companies in recruiting workers for seasonal 
and permanent job openings

Action 12.3

Action 12.4

batch

Oregon State University’s Seafood Research & Education 
Center - the OSU Seafood Lab - conducts research focus-
ing on production, quality and safety of seafood in Astoria, 
Oregon. Source: The Daily Astorian



38 Five-Year Economic Strategy for the City of Astoria





1

ADVANCE ASTORIA:
ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS FOR 
THE FIVE-YEAR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
STRATEGIC PLAN

May 2, 2017



2 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

[ BLANK ]



3

07 COMMUNITY PERSPECTIVES ON GROWTH

13 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT TRENDS

33 FORECASTING FUTURE GROWTH

39 UNDERSTANDING THE SUPPLY OF LAND

45 RECONCILING SUPPLY AND DEMAND

47 IMPLICATIONS FOR STRATEGY



4 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

[ BLANK ]



5

KEY FINDINGS
This document evaluates economic and economic development trends 
across a variety of scales to inform a forecast-based estimate of the demand 
for developable and redevelopable sites in Astoria, Oregon. This estimate of 
demand is compared with an estimate of the supply of these sites based on the 
City of Astoria and Clatsop County’s inventory of parcels. The following are key 
findings from the analysis.

Global Trends: after the recession in 2009, the world economy has rebounded 
unevenly, with robust centers of growth emerging in Asian markets. China’s 
growth, which has paced the planet for the last several years, is slowing, and 
the potential for a new wave of protectionist policies adds to an uncertain future 
for trade, especially in domestic regional economies that trade extensively with 
China and other Asian countries. China accounts for the vast majority of Port of 
Astoria exports.

National Trends: the U.S. economy has generally improved since the recession, 
with decreased unemployment and increased real GDP. However, wages have 
been stagnant. 

Regional Trends: Northwest Oregon, like much of the Pacific Northwest, is 
experiencing a prolonged decline in resource-based employment. Some of 
these industries, such as seafood processing, are likely to maintain a strong 
presence in Astoria into the future, while others may subside. New economic 
drivers will emerge, especially as a result of cross-pollination from larger metros 
like Portland.

Local Trends: the largest industry in Astoria, by far, is educational services, 
health care and social assistance. These jobs often pay good wages, and Astoria 
also benefits from relatively high levels of educational attainment. Nevertheless, 
anecdotal evidence suggests that housing affordability is a key issue.

Land Supply and Demand: the forecast indicates that employment in 
Astoria will grow by about 1% annually, adding about 1,400 net new jobs by 
2040. This could require about 125 acres of of developable and redevelopable 
land in Astoria. This study suggests that Astoria currently has enough land to 
meet this need, though some rezoning and intensification may be required to 
accommodate all new growth.

EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY



6 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

[ BLANK ]



7

This section of the Economic Opportunities 
Analysis presents an overview of the 
community and stakeholder engagement 
process utilized in the drafting of this 
document. Several outreach methods were 
employed, and hundreds of residents, 
business owners and others participated. The 
findings from this process add context to the 
data provided in subsequent sections of the 
EOA and give direction for the development 
of the City of Astoria’s economic 
development agenda.

The City employed multiple engagement methods in order to capture a significant 
number and wide variety of respondents and to ensure that all perspectives were 
represented. Thiese methods included the following:

• The creation of the Advance Party, a technical advisory panel that meets 
periodically, reviews and advises on work products, represents critical 
industries and works to engage the broader public.

• The hosting of two community forums to disseminate project information 
and technical data to stakeholders and to obtain feedback from members 
of the community. Though the forums are primarily intended to convey 
information about the project to the community, comments have been 
encouraged and accepted and integrated into the data profile.

• Panel discussions featuring a diverse array of business and industry 
leaders have been scheduled to follow select forums and Advance 
Party meetings. The public is invited to attend these discussions, which 

1
COMMUNITY 
PERSPECTIVES
ON GROWTH



8 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

generate interest in the project and provide insight into economic development challenges, 
as well as innovative solutions to these challenges, from other locations in the region.

• A survey has been widely distributed and promoted at the community forums. This survey 
has resulted in more than 90 individual responses to 13 unique questions about economic 
development challenges and opportunities in Astoria, and the results will be leveraged for the 
development of strategic priorities and tailored actions.

• A pop-up display has been developed and deployed at a variety of community events and 
meetings to engage people who are not interested or able to attend the community forums 
and other activities. This display is graphically appealing and features a “postcard from the 
future”, where participants write a postcard to describe the types of improvements that have 
occured in Astoria at a specified time in the coming years.

• A series of five intensive focus groups were conducted with small groups of industry 
representatives to understand the factors affecting known industry clusters in Astoria. These 
focus groups included up to eight participants and focused on industry-specific challenges 
and opportunities, with direct relevance to an economic development strategy. Several 
follow-up interviews were conducted to supplement focus group participation.

All of these activities have resulted in feedback that is broadly representative of local perspectives 
and informative for the City and the project team. 

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS
Several themes emerged from the engagement process, and while those themes were largely 
consistent between engagement activities, each activity generated unique ideas about what Astoria 
is good at, challenged by and would benefit from. Key findings from the survey and the focus groups 
are repesented below. 

SURVEY FINDINGS
• Local business owners and residents were heavily represented in the responses, but 

perspectives from Warrenton, rural Clatsop County, Portland and elsewhere were included. 
Business  owners who participated largely operated in retail or small-scale manufacturing.

• Labor force availability and preparation ranked as the second most significant barrier to 
opening or expanding a business in Astoria and the highest ranked economic development 
challenge. 

• Respondents also highlighted a lack of land for new development and a lack of available 
commercial space as the most significant impediment to opening or expanding a business.

• The highest ranking economic development opportunities were also related to labor: rethinking 
workforce training programs and creating new jobs through expanded partnerships between 
businesses, institutions and government.



9

• The survey results demonstrated huge support for expansion of industries related to research 
and development, education, medicine and health care, and light manufacturing  (especially 
via value-added production).

• The results also demonstrated good support for craft brewing and fermentation industries, 
as well as microenterprise.

• There was significant support via write-in responses for tourism-related industries, resource-
based industries, especially including logging, commercial fishing and processing, and 
agriculture, and technology and related services, such as software and web development, 
which may include workers who telecommute to jobs in other cities.

• The survey results indicate that large investments from the City should focus on business 
recruitment, retention and expansion for businesses that fit Astoria’s needs.

• Several specific proposals were included in one survey question, and the highest ranked 
priorities were expansion of the “Extreme Makeover” storefront improvement program, 
establishing a business incubator for small businesses, and creating a “one-stop-shop” for 
information for business owners at the City.

FOCUS GROUP FINDINGS
The following is a summary of comments from focus group participants. These comments reflect the 
views and opinions of the participants and will inform, but not direct, the development of economic 
development strategies.

Research and Development, Medicine and Education

Industry Prospects

• There is a lot of interest in sustaining natural runs of salmon in the Columbia River; science will 
continue to play a strong role in the economy here around sustaining viable fish populations.

• Our education and medicine cluster needs to be supporting the other clusters in town.

• OSU Extension could be an asset for these industries in Astoria, offering innovative nutrition 
and fermentation science programs.

• Housing in Astoria is a huge barrier to attracting and maintaining professional caliber talent.

• There may be an opportunity for the landlords’ association to have a relationship with the 
hospital, OSU Extension or other employers to provide contract housing for employees.

• Health care and education represent critical services to residents, in addition to offering 
good jobs, making them an important component of Astoria’s livability.



10 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

Microenterprise & Entrepreneurship

• Astoria is at a crossroads now for what it will become; it’s never good if it’s just tourism, and 
Astoria’s entrepreneurs and telecommuting workers from other cities inject some diversity.

• Home-based business licensing process could be a major obstacle for entrepreneurs 
locating here.

• As businesses scale up, it is extremely difficult to find available and affordable commercial 
space.

• There seems to be a lot of turnover and high failure rates with small businesses downtown; 
perhaps some sort of testing ground (e.g. a maker space), programs or city-sponsored or 
supported business training could improve the prospects for entrepreneurs.

• The Astoria Sunday Market is a vital resource.

Craft Brewing & Fermentation 

• The breweries and other related businesses can contribute to the City’s brand, and the City 
should work to strategically support what the brand is; what’s critical is an evolving attitude 
about the City’s identity, which is no longer fixed to timber and canning.

• Mixed-use zoning is critical, as is flexible use interpretation, for businesses in this industry 
because it often straddles the divide between retail and industry; the City has been good to 
work with and very flexible.

• Finding housing for new employees is a very significant challenge.

• Tourism is essential for retailers, and probably is inevitable as well, but we don’t want to 
become a monoculture of tourism; we want to be a good place to live that serves residents 
well.

• Livability is critical; as an example, recreational uses of forest lands should factor into an 
economic development strategy – this could be a world-class mountain biking town, but the 
forests have mostly been let go to motorized users.

Non-Profit / Philanthropy

• Living wage jobs are the number one need in the area; there has been a lot of economic 
development, but not much of it provides living wages.

• Housing is a major challenge; ADUs, DADUs, tiny homes, mixed-use residential, increased 
multifamily densities and other solutions must be evaluated.

• Construction costs contribute to a lack of housing development and developers of affordable 
housing pay more than private sector developers due to increased regulation.

• This study should leverage other ongoing programs: ADHDA is doing a cluster analysis to 



11

understand what businesses anchor industry clusters here and where clusters would like to 
see businesses come in.

• Reliable, high-speed internet is a need for local businesses.

Food and Food Production

• Parking is a challenge during high season, and our business relies on easy park and foot 
traffic; there are dead blocks downtown that could be used for a parking structure, which 
could be a great investment.

• The tourism industry is critical for restaurants and other businesses in this industry; during 
three months of the year we make 70% of our annual revenue.

• Increasing the number of festivals and events would drive traffic to food establishments and 
other retailers.

• Astoria has been good to work with (and better than other cities in northwest Oregon) when 
going through the process of opening a business.

• Embracing Astoria’s historical significance should be a component of an economic 
development strategy.



12 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

[ BLANK ]



13

This section of the Economic Opportunities 
Analysis evaluates data across multiple 
scales to identify and assess global, national, 
regional and local trends in economics 
and economic development. These trends 
are informed by local perspectives and 
community input and in turn they suggest 
strategies that can accomplish broader 
community objectives.

The data presented here offer measures of growth (e.g. gross domestic product, 
employment, investment, exports, population), measures of prosperity (e.g. 
productivity, income) and measures of economic inclusion (e.g. wages). The 
image below depicts the relationships between some of these metrics and is 
instructive in how local, regional and national economies function together. 

2
ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 
TRENDS



14 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

GLOBAL TRENDS
Global economic trends set the context in which the U.S. national economy operates. In the Pacific 
Northwest, in particular, global trade and trade relationships with Asian countries are tremendously 
important to local and regional economic growth. 

Figure 2.1 shows that global trade fell 11.4% in 2015, which was the first year-over-year decline 
since 2009, when a global recession was accompanied by a decline in overall global trade of 20.4%. 
Much of the decline was due to lower trade in merchandise while the trade in services has been 
reasonably consistent over the past four years. Trade is important to national economies because it 
generates revenue, encourages specialization and spurs job creation. Most economists believe that 
countries that trade more also enjoy paths to higher economic growth, but growth is a broader metric 
and national economies can grow even when trade falters. 

FIGURE 2.1 GLOBAL TRADE IN SERVICES AND MERCHANDISE
All Countries, 2005 – 2015 | World Trade Organization (2016)

Figure 2.2 illustrates the growth of the global economy, as well as clusters of national economies. 
Major advanced economies tend to grow more slowly, while emerging and developing economies in 
Europe and Asia grow more rapidly. Taken together, the global economy grew rapidly coming out of 
the recession in 2009, and that growth has levelled off in recent years to between 3% and 4%. 

Emerging and developing Asian economies experienced particularly robust growth, having averaged 
between 6% and 10% annually for almost two decades. Asia will continue to emerge as the largest 
source of economic growth globally, with China displacing the U.S. as the largest economy in the 
world within the next two decades (or sooner). China and Japan  already constitute the 2nd and 
3rd largest economies in the world. India—which has the seventh largest economy in the world—is 
expected to grow in real terms between 7.5% and 7.8% per year between now and 2021.



15

FIGURE 2.2 OBSERVED ANNUAL GLOBAL GROWTH
All Countries, 2000 – 2016 | International Monetary Fund

Given the Pacific Northwest’s trade relationships in Asia, as well as Asia’s strong contribution to global 
growth, the performance of key national economies on that continent will continue to be important 
factors for regional economies in the U.S. Figure 2.4 shows that China’s economy, which grew at 
a rate faster than 9% every year between 2002 and 2011, is beginning to slow down. Economic 
projections suggest that Chinese economic growth will flatten to an annualized rate of 6% in the 
coming years. Part of this decline can be attributed to the readjustment of the Chinese economy 
towards domestic consumption and away from investment (gross capital formation). Despite an 
overall decline, exports to China could still increase in the years ahead as household consumption 
increases as a share of GDP. China is currently the predominant recipient of exports from the Port 
of Astoria (Figure 2.3), and a growing Chinese middle class will increasingly demand high value 
foods, including seafood sourced in U.S. waters, which could present more export opportunities for 
Oregon-based commercial fishing and seafood processing industries.



16 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

FIGURE 2.3 EXPORTS BY DESTINATION
Port of Astoria, 2016 | U.S. Census Bureau – USA Trade (2015)

However, China may need to address a new wave of insolvent credit among state enterprises, which 
could potentially hamper future economic growth. Furthermore, a global trend toward populism may 
hinder further free trade deals. The Trans-Pacific Partnership (TPP) would have potentially increased 
local exports to Japan and Vietnam, but the trade deal is no longer expected to be passed by the 
new Congress.

FIGURE 2.4 OBSERVED AND PROJECTED ANNUAL GROWTH
China, 2000 – 2021 | International Monetary Fund (2016)



17

NATIONAL TRENDS
The U.S. economy has rebounded from the Great Recession and most economic metrics reflect this 
strong position. U.S. unemployment has fallen from nearly 10% at the beginning of 2010 to about 5% 
in Q3 2016 (Figure 2.5). 

2.5 QUARTERLY UNEMPLOYMENT RATE
United States, 2010 – 2016 | U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (2017)

Despite increasing employment, real median household income has not grown significantly for 
decades. Despite strong growth in real median household income in 2015, the metric still shows 
incomes lagging relative to their peak in 1999. Furthermore, growth only in one income segment 
(e.g. high-earning households) can shift the median household income significantly. This increases 
the importance of local wage data, as well as local conversations on income and wage equality and 
cost-of-living.

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

20
10

 J
an

20
10

 M
ar

20
10

 M
ay

20
10

 J
ul

20
10

 S
ep

20
10

 N
ov

20
11

 J
an

20
11

 M
ar

20
11

 M
ay

20
11

 J
ul

20
11

 S
ep

20
11

 N
ov

20
12

 J
an

20
12

 M
ar

20
12

 M
ay

20
12

 J
ul

20
12

 S
ep

20
12

 N
ov

20
13

 J
an

20
13

 M
ar

20
13

 M
ay

20
13

 J
ul

20
13

 S
ep

20
13

 N
ov

20
14

 J
an

20
14

 M
ar

20
14

 M
ay

20
14

 J
ul

20
14

 S
ep

20
14

 N
ov

20
15

 J
an

20
15

 M
ar

20
15

 M
ay

20
15

 J
ul

20
15

 S
ep

20
15

 N
ov

20
16

 J
an

20
16

 M
ar

20
16

 M
ay

20
16

 J
ul

20
16

 S
ep



18 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

2.6 MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME VS REAL GDP
United States, 1986-2015 | U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis (2017)

A lack of growth in real median household incomes exists despite long-term gains in real GDP per 
capita, which is a proxy for worker productivity  (Figure 2.6-2.7). When productivity increases faster 
than median incomes, this can indicate increasing inequality. However, since 2012 the growth in 
real GDP per capita has been somewhat anemic. Weak growth in productivity could further hamper 
growth in real median household incomes. However, the concurrent rebound in productivity and 
uptick in real median household income from 2015-2016 offers improved prospects for workers’ pay.  

There are several other micro-trends that underpin these macroeconomic observations. For example, 
entrepreneurship is taking new forms and increasing in popularity. Many individuals now choose 
to record their earnings via the IRS 1099 process and as a result do not appear in employment 
or unemployment statistics, but nevertheless contribute to local and regional economic growth. 
These individuals exist in most industries and have powered an apparent resurgence in DIY-inspired, 
“maker” culture. Though some of these individuals maintain full-time employment elsewhere while 
pursuing entrepreneurial projects on a part-time basis, these efforts, when successful, have the 
potential to grow into larger companies that employ local workers.

Data from Economic Modeling Specialists International (EMSI) indicate that as of 2012 there are 
almost 11 million self-employed people in the US, which represents a 14.4% increase from 2001. In 
Oregon, an estimated 9% of all workers are considered to be self-employed. Many of these workers 
have needs that are not met through the traditional job markets. They often desire cost-effective, 
shared- or cooperatively-owned office space, equipment and other just-in-time services that provide 
efficiency and flexibility. The rise of incubators, “makers” spaces, co-working labs and tool libraries 
are evidence of these preferences. Cities that want to encourage independent entrepreneurs can 
explore innovative means of delivering these resources. 

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5
19

86
19

87
19

88
19

89
19

90
19

91
19

92
19

93
19

94
19

95
19

96
19

97
19

98
19

99
20

00
20

01
20

02
20

03
20

04
20

05
20

06
20

07
20

08
20

09
20

10
20

11
20

12
20

13
20

14
20

15

Real GDP

Real median HH
income

Index (1986=100%)



19

2.7 REAL GDP PER CAPITA
United States, 2005-2015 | U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis (2017); U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (2017)

Astoria’s entrepreneurial economy is illustrated in Figure 2.8. There are 139 identified entrepreneurial 
establishments in Astoria. They report average revenues of about $70,000 annually for a total of more 
than $9.5M in 2015, and on average they occupy less than 1,800 square feet of space to operate, 
which means that the entire sector leases nearly 250,000 square feet of space within the City. There 
may be opportunities to improve the provision of resources for these and other entrepreneurs as an 
avenue for current and future economic development. This model is consistent with an economic 
gardening philosophy, and may be a good fit for Astoria.

One of the core services that governments can provide to entrepreneurs and established business 
owners alike is infrastructure. Quality infrastructure improves the odds that companies will find a 
development site attractive, hence offering a valuable economic development tool. Other forms 
of infrastructure, such as high-speed internet, are becoming increasingly important, however, 
as employees place a stronger emphasis on living in places that offer a high quality of life which 
sometimes includes telecommuting to jobs in other cities. In this way, economic development in the 
United States today is less about site-selection and deal-making than it has been in the past, and 
is increasingly about cultivating a pool of educated and talented workers, clean, safe and enjoyable 
community and responsive local government.



20 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

2.8 ENTREPRENEURIAL CLUSTERS
City of Astoria, 2016 | Hoover’s; Community Attributes Inc.

REGIONAL TRENDS
The economies of the Pacific Northwest have traditionally been dependent on natural resources. 
Forestry and commercial fishing, in particular, have historically been powerful forces for local and 
regional economic growth. In Oregon and other areas throughout the Pacific Northwest, these 
industries are changing and new paths of growth are emerging. 

Forestry offers a salient example. The timber industry in the Pacific Northwest, generally, and in State 
of Oregon specifically, has decreased in prominence over the previous decades (Figure 2.9). Several 
factors, including the listing of the Spotted Owl as an endangered species in 1990  and the adoption 
of the Northwest Forest Plan (NWFP) in 1994 curtailed production. While some forestry-dependent 
economies are still seeking economic resiliency, others have diversified or are investigating new 
products, such as cross-laminated timber (CLT), to reinvigorate the industry. Notably, employment 
in forestry and logging in Clatsop County has remained relatively steady since 1990 (Figure 2.10), 
despite the statewide decline.



21

FIGURE 2.9 ANNUAL TIMBER HARVEST IN BOARD FEET
State of Oregon, 1991-2015 | Oregon Department of Forestry (2016)

Commercial fishing and other maritime activities are economic engines up and down the Pacific 
coast. Employment in Oregon’s maritime sectors has increased in recent years—from about 8,700 
jobs to about 9,400, but certain sub-sectors—such as recreational boating and sport fishing and 
commercial fishing and seafood products—have remained steady or have shrunk (Figure 2.10). 

0

1,000,000,000

2,000,000,000

3,000,000,000

4,000,000,000

5,000,000,000

6,000,000,000

7,000,000,000

FIGURE 2.10 HISTORICAL EMPLOYMENT IN RESOURCE-RELATED INDUSTRIES
Clatsop County, 1990-2015  |  U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics QCEW



22 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

FIGURE 2.11 MARITIME-RELATED EMPLOYMENT BY SECTOR
State of Oregon, 2012-2015 | U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (2016)

In Clatsop County, specifically, food processing (NAICS 311), which houses some companies doing 
business in the commercial fishing and seafood products sector in Figure 2.12, also accounts for a 
smaller portion of manufacturing jobs now than in 2010, and has lost 175 jobs in the past five years.

Though food processing is a subset of the manufacturing sector, it has historically been an important 
source of employment for Astoria. As maritime-related employment waxes and wanes locally, the 
composition of manufacturing jobs is likely to change as well. A prolonged decline in industries such 
as food processing would potentially require creative planning for the future of manufacturing and 
industry in Clatsop County. 

4,800 4,900 5,000 5,100 

1,800 1,800 1,700 1,700 

1,400 1,500 1,600 1,800 

800 700 800 
800 

8,700 8,900 9,100 
9,400 

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

2012 2013 2014 2015

Recreational Boating and Sport Fishing
Boat and Ship Building, Repair, and Maintenance
Commercial Fishing and Seafood Products
Maritime Logistics and Shipping



23

FIGURE 2.12 EMPLOYMENT IN FOOD PROCESSING AND OTHER MANUFACTURING
Clatsop County, Oregon, 2005-2016 | Oregon Department of Employment (2016)

Even if commercial fishing, food processing and other resource-related drivers of local industry 
maintain their current levels of employment or grow in the coming years, the regional economy of 
Northwest Oregon and Clatsop County is likely to continue to experience some restructuring as new 
economic drivers emerge. 

Increasing mobility for residents and workers improves the cross-pollination of economies and 
can create opportunities for these new drivers to emerge. Anecdotal evidence suggests a strong 
presence of recently-relocated residents in Astoria and Clatsop County, some of whom bring new 
ideas and open new businesses or bring new skills and empower existing firms. The data in Figure 
3.4 validates the anecdotal evidence, showing that Astoria and Clatsop County had relatively few 
residents living in their same home one year ago. In Astoria, nearly 12% of all residents lived outside 
Clatsop County or outside the State of Oregon 12-months prior. 



24 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

FIGURE 2.13 RESIDENCE ONE YEAR AGO
Selected Comparison Geographies, 2015 | U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey

While mobility can inject new life into an economy, a trickle-down of some jobs from larger metros 
into secondary and tertiary markets can also impact wages and local spending power. For example, 
when companies that participate in an “innovation economy” in a large city establish satellite offices 
in smaller towns, their workers are often paid wages that exceed those paid to many local residents. 
This can have a ripple effect, placing upward pressure on housing prices that makes home-ownership 
more difficult for those original residents who don’t directly benefit from increased wages.

Whether explicitly tied to mobility or not, wages in Astoria have grown within certain wage bands, 
while the average wage has hardly moved (Figure 2.14). In fact, wages at the 50th percentile in 
Astoria have increased rapidly, growing 8.2% between 2012 and 2015. This strengthening in middle-
wage earnings is important given a December 29, 2016 article from Oregon Live, which indicates 
that, despite continued job growth, middle-wage jobs will continue to see fewer new job openings in 
the State of Oregon. 

The average wage in Multnomah County, comparatively, has grown significantly across all wage 
levels. This highlights the importance of the mobility data presented in Figure 2.13, since an influx 
into Astoria of residents from Multnomah County could introduce a new economic dynamic in 
northwest Oregon. 



25

FIGURE 2.14 CHANGE IN WAGES PAID
Multnomah and Clatsop Counties, Oregon, 2012-2015 | U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey  

LOCAL TRENDS
Local trends are most meaningful in the context of the larger regional, national and global trends 
discussed earlier. The data presented here help to hone in on economic development constraints 
and opportunities for Astoria, given its place within a larger economic sphere. 

Local educational attainment (Figure 2.15) is particularly important because it has ramifications for 
workforce capabilities, wages, business retention and attraction and other economic development 
concerns. About 29% of Astoria residents (25 years old or older) hold a bachelor’s degree or higher, 
which is comparable to Newport and significantly higher than St. Helens or Tillamook. This offers a 
reservoir of educated workers for local companies. Notably, the portion of Astoria residents who have 
attained less than a high school diploma is about 7%, which is lower than any selected comparison 
city or county. 



26 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

FIGURE 2.15 EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT
Selected Cities and Counties, Oregon, 2015 | U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey 

Wages tend to vary with educational attainment, so having a more educated workforce often leads 
to increased incomes, which in-turn promotes local spending and has a multiplicative effect on 
local economic activity. However, despite a relatively well-educated workforce, housing affordability 
represents a challenge for many Astoria residents. Figure 2.16 shows, that housing affordability is 
a challenge across many Oregon communities.

In Astoria, for example, about 41% of all renters spend more than 30% of their income on housing costs, 
which is the level that the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development deems affordable. 
No other comparison city or county shows fewer than 50% of renters who are cost-burdened. In an 
absolute sense, fewer home owners are cost-burdened than renters, though Astoria’s rates are more 
in-keeping with the selected comparison geographies. 

Nevertheless, anecdotal evidence suggests that housing affordability is a key issue in Astoria. The 
year-over-year gains in home prices can contribute to this challenge, as can limited housing supply. 
Transportation costs are also an important factor to consider, since the distance between home and 
work can place an additional burden on a worker, even if housing costs are low.  



27

FIGURE 2.16 HOUSING AFFORDABILITY
Selected Cities and Counties, Oregon, 2015 | U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey 

Astoria also experiences a unique dynamic within the housing market due to the significant presence 
of the U.S. Armed Forces. Members of the Armed Forces often move more frequently, sometimes are 
limited by the availability of housing subsidies, and occasionally choose to live on a military base. 
These factors affect housing demand.

Figure 2.17 indicates that Astoria has a larger share of the population working for the military, 
primarily due to a significant U.S. Coast Guard presence. 2.3% of Astoria residents 16 or older are 
employed in the Armed Forces; according to the U.S. Census Bureau, about 500 Clatsop County 
residents are employed in the Armed Forces, which includes almost 200 Astoria residents.

FIGURE 2.17 EMPLOYMENT STATUS
Selected Cities and Counties, Oregon, 2015 | U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey



28 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

For Astoria workers that are not employed in the Armed Forces, educational services, health care 
and social assistance represents the largest industry sector, with more than 1,000 employees. Retail 
trade and arts, entertainment and recreation are also significant to the local economy, with more than 
650 workers each. A full breakout of employment by industry is presented in Figure 2.18. Location 
quotients, which represent the relative strength of an industry, are presented in Figure 2.19.

Some industry sectors aren’t readily apparent in the data, but are important to economic development 
efforts nonetheless. Figure 2.20 documents the locations and relative size of businesses in Astoria 
that compose four identified priority sectors. These sectors represent an initial discovery of economic 
development opportunities that the Advance Astoria initiative will pursue.

FIGURE 2.18 EMPLOYMENT BY INDUSTRY
City of Astoria, 2015 | U.S. Census Bureau American Community Survey



29

Agriculture

Construction

Manufacturing

Wholesale Trade

Retail Trade
Transportation, Warehousing, and 

Utilities 

Information

Finance and Insurance

Real Estate 

Professional Services

Administrative Support

Educational Services

Health Care

Arts and Entertainment

Accommodation and Food 
Services

Other ServicesPublic Administration0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

-1.5% -1.0% -0.5% 0.0% 0.5% 1.0% 1.5% 2.0% 2.5%

Lo
ca

tio
n 

Q
uo

tie
nt

, 
20

15

Compound Annual Growth Rate, 2015-2025

FIGURE 2.19 LOCATION QUOTIENTS BY INDUSTRY
CIty of Astoria, 2016 | Oregon DOE; Community Attributes Inc.



30 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

FIGURE 2.20 POTENTIAL PRIORITY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CLUSTERS
CIty of Astoria, 2016 | Hoover’s; Community Attributes Inc.



31



32 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

[ BLANK ]



33

3
FORECASTING 
FUTURE 
GROWTH
Growth forecasts aid policymakers by 
presenting scenarios for the future, which can 
improve planning efforts. This section of the 
report presents a forecast for employment 
in Astoria through 2040, and translates the 
projected growth into demand for additional 
employment lands.

FORECASTING EMPLOYMENT
For the purposes of this EOA, CAI has developed a custom employment 
forecast that provides net new employment (jobs) by two-digit NAICS industry. 
The forecast utilizes existing forecast products from multiple entities to make 
projections for Astoria through 2040. The forecast methods and findings are 
discussed in greater detail below.

METHODS
Total employment by sector geocoded to the City of Astoria was provided via 
a data request from the Oregon Department of Employment (OED). This data 
reflects a range of employment estimates by specific industry breakouts as 
represented in the final forecast. OED also provides a regional forecast 

Quarterly Astoria MSA total employment estimates from the U.S. Bureau of Labor 
Statistics provide the backend data which is used to statistically approximate the 
yearly employment growth rate from 2024 through 2040 via an ARIMA model. 



34 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

Oregon Employment Department Regional Forecast

The baseline forecast from 2015-2024 is anchored by the OED regional forecast which covers Benton, 
Clatsop, Columbia, Lincoln and Tillamook Counties. The City of Astoria represents a significant 
share of employment in several sub industries represented in the OED forecast. Whenever possible, 
the employment estimate represented from 2015 through 2024 reflects the OED forecast estimates 
through 2024. Occasionally, these estimates are edited if the City of Astoria does not have an industry 
employment estimate that would be accurately captured in the OED forecast. 

Community Attributes Inc. Astoria MSA Forecast

As the OED forecast only runs through 2024, it was necessary to supplement the final forecast 
output with a custom forecast to estimate total employment in Astoria from 2024 through 2040. This 
was done by looking at quarterly employment estimates from the Bureau of Labor Statistics. This 
forecast focuses on estimated total employment within the Astoria MSA from which year to year 
growth rates are calculated and then applied to the City of Astoria employment estimates. Industry 
specific employment estimates are a product of the OED forecast industry shares along with 2015 
industry employment estimates provided by OED.

The forecast used was an ARIMA model  that attempts to describe the inherent autocorrelations in 
the quarterly employment data and then make forecast predictions based on those quarterly trends.

FINDINGS
The forecast model indicates that total employment in Astoria will grow from 5,636 in 2016 to 7,075 
in 2040. This represents a compound annual growth rate of .95%. According to the forecast, total 
employment in Astoria will be 6,796 at the end of the 20-year period ending in 2036. 

The largest number of new jobs (460) will be located in the health care and social assistance (NAICS 
62) sector, which is already Astoria’s largest industry. The highest growth rates are expected to 
occur in construction (NAICS 23) and wholesale trade (NAICS 42) with 1.8% and 1.7% compound 
annual growth, respectively. Only one industry (NAICS 51 - information) is expected to shrink over the 
forecast period. These trends are illustrated in Figures 3.1 and 3.2.

UNDERSTANDING DEMAND
Generally speaking, growth in employment (new jobs) requires new buildings to house the additional 
employees. In this way, a growth forecast is the first step in understanding the demand for employment 
land. 

METHODS
Translating a growth forecast into demand for employment land requires an understanding of how 
much square footage can be built on any given parcel and an understanding of how many square feet 



35

FIGURE 3.1 - FORECAST SUMMARY TABLE

FIGURE 3.2 - FORECAST SUMMARY 



36 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

are required to house each employee. These variables are expressed below in a series of equations, 
each of which is explained to clarify the process of calculating demand for employment land.

(new employment) X (square feet per employee) = (built square feet demanded)

New employment is given in the forecast. 

An assumption for the number of square feet required to house each employee is obtained using 
data from Hoover’s, which provides facility square footage and total employment for all businesses 
in  Astoria. Dividing the number of employees by the total facility square footage for all businesses 
in each NAICS-defined industry provides an empirical input from local businesses that can inform 
the model. 

Multiplying new employment in each industry by the square footage required to house an average 
employee in each industry yields the number of building square feet needed to accommodate the 
forecasted employment growth.

(built square feet demanded) / (FAR) = (land square feet demanded)

To obtain an estimate of how much square footage can be built on any given parcel, a representative 
floor-to-area ratio (FAR) is applied to each group of zones. FAR is the ratio of total built square footage 
to total land square footage, and is expressed as a decimal. For the purposes of this analysis, the 
total square footage of all commercial facilities in Astoria is identified using data from Hoover’s. 
These facilities are identified by the company’s NAICS code, which can be mapped to the zones 
used in this study. Using buildable lands methodologies and geographic information systems (GIS), 
a described in Section 3 of this report, one can calculate the total square footage of occupied lands 
in each of those zones. Then, the total facility square footage is divided by the occupied land square 
footage to obtain an FAR that represents current businesses located in the selected zones. 

Dividing the built square feet demanded by the FAR yields the number of land square feet needed to 
accommodate the forecasted employment growth.

(land square feet demanded) X (zone capture rate) = (land square feet demanded by zone)

Land square feet demanded by employment growth in each NAICS-defined industry is apportioned 
to the different employment-supporting zones to account for the fact that workers in some industries 
can find space in multiple zones (e.g. NAICS 31-33 manufacturing jobs can be located in industrial 
zones, but also in aquatic development zones, while NAICS 72 accommodation and food services 
jobs are likely to be located almost exclusively in commercial zones). Zone capture rates represent 
the percent of all new jobs that will locate within a given zone, and are estimates based on observed 
land use and employment patterns. These rates are highlighted in green in Figure 3.3.

Multiplying the land square feet demanded by the assigned capture rate for each zone (or group of 
zones) yields the number of land square feet needed to accommodate the forecasted employment 
growth in each zone.

(land square feet demanded by zone) / 43,560 = (acres demanded by zone)

There are 43,560 square feet in each acre. Dividing the land square feet demanded by zone by 43,560 
converts the land demand estimate into acres needed to accommodate the forecasted employment 
growth in each zone. These demand estimates can then be compared to employment-supporting 
land supply estimates from a vacant and redevelopable or buildable lands analysis. 



37

FIGURE 3.3 - LAND DEMAND SUMMARY



38 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

FINDINGS
This analysis suggests demand for about 125 acres of employment-supporting land. Institutional 
lands are subject to the highest levels of demand, with about 61 acres needed to accommodate 
forecasted employment growth. Significant amounts of vacant and redevelopable are necessary to 
accommodate anticipated growth in commercial and industrial zones, as well, with each requiring 
about 29 and 25 acres, respectively. 

There is little demand for employment land in attached housing zones, which may be appropriate 
given that these are mixed-use zones with significant residential components (and therefore a limited 
ability to house new employment).

Inputs to this demand model are extremely sensitive. Changes in the amount of square feet needed 
to house a given number of workers (for example, due to increased telecommuting) could change 
the amount of land needed to accommodate the forecasted growth. Furthermore, some uses may be 
able to adapt to different zones, which would alter the assumed zone capture rates. Understanding 
these sensitivities is important to ensure that adopted policy creates a balanced supply of land to fit 
anticipated employment patterns and changes in job and development markets.



39

4
UNDERSTANDING 
THE SUPPLY OF 
LAND
Employment land in Astoria is provided 
within myriad commercial, industrial and 
other zones. This section of the report 
surveys these lands to quantify the vacant 
and redevelopable parcels, in acres, that 
may be expected to support future growth in 
Astoria’s employment.

A buildable lands inventory (BLI) for the City of Astoria was completed in 2011. 
The methods employed in this EOA differ from those used in the BLI and the two 
analyses should be expected to produce different results. However, since there 
has been limited development and redevelopment in the intervening years, the 
employment land capacity depicted in this report may not differ greatly from the 
figures given in the BLI.

METHODS
Any analysis of buildable lands requires an estimate of the supply of land to meet 
expected growth. This EOA focuses only on employment lands, and therefore 
provides an estimate of the supply of land available to house employment-
generating uses. To prepare this estimate, CAI assessed the City of Astoria’s 
zoning code to identify the subset of zones that allow for commercial and 
industrial enterprises and other employment-generating uses. The 20 zones that 
were selected were then sorted into five groups based on the predominant use 
within each zone. Non-employment zones, such as residential or conservation 
and habitat zones, were excluded. This selection process is summarized in 
Figure 4.1.

The five “collapsed” zones include the aquatic development zones, attached 
housing zones, commercial zones, industrial zones and institutional zones. 
Employment lands in these zones are found throughout the City, and are most 
prevalent along or near waterfronts (e.g. the Columbia River, Young’s Bay). More 



40 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

specifically, industrial lands are clustered on Port of Astoria properties in the eastern and western 
portions of the City, and institutional lands are largely located in the central, upper portion of the City; 
commercial zones are most likely to be located in or near downtown Astoria. The map in Figure 4.2 
illustrates these employment lands.

Of all the employment lands identified in Figure 4.2, many parcels have already been developed, or 
are otherwise encumbered by critical areas, such that they cannot support additional employment. 
Other parcels are either vacant or redevelopable. Using parcel-based data from the Clatsop County 
Assessor, CAI identified vacant and redevelopable employment lands from the zones selected for 
the land inventory. These vacant or redevelopable portions of the total employment land inventory 
are represented in lighter colors in Figure 4.3. Notably, Figure 4.3 also references future industrial 
development sites from the previous update of the Comprehensive Plan. These sites are critical 
components of land supply.

The identified vacant and redevelopable lands are further subdivided in tiers, to aid in understanding 
barriers to redevelopment, potential development timelines, and other considerations. Tier A 
employment lands are considered completely vacant, while Tier B and C employment lands are 
those that have lower improvement values, which suggest that existing structures may be replaced 
in the future. The specific criteria used to defined Tier A and Tier B lands within each collapsed zone 
are provided below. 

• Tier A lands are vacant. Vacant lands are defined as parcels with very little or no improvement 
value, and are identified within the data by selecting parcels with $.001 Real Market 
Improvement Value per square foot of land.

• Tier B and C lands are potentially vacant or redevelopable. Potentially redevelopable lands 
are defined as parcels with limited improvements in terms of building value per square foot 
of land, and are identified within the data by selecting parcels with $.001 to $2.50 Real Market 
Improvement Value per square foot of land.

Using geographic information systems (GIS) the gross supply of Tier A, Tier B and Tier C employment 
lands is converted to net supply by deducting land area that may not be buildable. These deductions 
account for roads and other rights of way, public parks, FEMA-designated floodways, wetlands, 
steep slopes and other similar hazards or constraints. 

Rights of way and parks are contained within the GIS data, and may therefore be excluded on a 
parcel-by-parcel basis so that parcels unencumbered by parks and rights of way remain wholly 
buildable. 

After deductions, net land supply is expressed in acres. It represents an estimate of the amount of 
land within each set of zones that can accommodate additional employment through new, greenfield  
development or redevelopment of lower-intensity or lower-value uses. A summary of net land supply 
for each collapsed zone, along with an overview of the deductions applied to gross land supply, is 
provided in Figure 4.4.



41

FIGURE 4.1 - ZONE SELECTIONS FIGURE 4.2 - ASTORIA EMPLOYMENT LANDS INVENTORY

FIGURE 4.3 - VACANT AND REDEVELOPABLE EMPLOYMENT LANDS



42 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

FINDINGS
The following findings are based on the buildable lands analysis described above and are contained 
in Figure 4.4. Findings are presented for each of the collapsed zones presented in Figure 4.1. 
Applicable notes for Figure 4.4 include the following:

*  See Methodology for Collapsed Zone definitions
**  Rights-of-Way include Astoria Riverwalk rails-to-trails parcels
***  See Methodology for definitions of “Vacant”, “Partially Vacant”, and “Potentially Redevelopable” lands
****  See Methodology for detailed explanation of Critical Deductions.
*****  “Unbuildable Fragments” are comprised of parcel fragments after Critical Deductions of .07 acres or 
 less, or of unbuildable configurations (eg, long and narrow fragments).

• Aquatic Development Zones include about 892 acres of parcel area. Of that sum, 499 
acres are excluded from gross land supply due to rights of way, parks and other parcel 
limitations. Of the remaining 394 acres, approximately 225 acres are buildable.

• Attached Housing Zones include about 27 acres of land. Of that sum, approximately six  
acres and one-third acres are excluded from gross land supply due to rights of way and 
parks, respectively. Of the remaining 20 acres, about nine are considered vacant, while 
one acre is considered redevelopable. After deductions for floodways, wetlands and steep 
slopes, these zones provide a total vacant and redevelopable employment lands capacity 
(net supply) of about five acres. 

• Commercial Zones include about 297 acres of land. Of that sum, approximately 104  
acres and four acres are excluded from gross land supply due to rights of way and parks, 
respectively. Of the remaining 188 acres, about 30 are considered vacant, while 24 acres are 
considered potentially redevelopable. After deductions for floodways, wetlands and steep 
slopes, these zones provide a total vacant and redevelopable employment lands capacity 
(net supply) of about 35 acres. 

• Industrial Zones include about 293 acres of land. Of that sum, approximately 24 acres 
and one-quarter acres are excluded from gross land supply due to rights of way and parks, 
respectively. Of the remaining 269 acres, about 58 are considered vacant, while 85 acres are 
considered redevelopable. After deductions for floodways, wetlands and steep slopes, these 
zones provide a total vacant and redevelopable employment lands capacity (net supply) of 
about 86 acres. 

• Institutional Zones include about 518 acres of land. Of that sum, approximately 37 acres 
and 73 acres are excluded from gross land supply due to rights of way and parks, respectively. 
Of the remaining 408 acres, about 41 are considered vacant. After deductions for floodways, 
wetlands and steep slopes, these zones provide a total vacant and redevelopable employment 
lands capacity (net supply) of about 14 acres. 

In total, the analysis suggests that Astoria has approximately 343 acres of vacant or redevelopable 
employment lands to accommodate future employment growth. This represents about 17% of the 
total land area in the employment-supporting zones (inclusive of parks and rights of way).



43

1 AQUATIC DEVELOPMENT ZONES Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Total   

Vacant  
Lands***

Part ial ly Vacant  
Lands***

Potent ial ly 
Redevelopab le 

Lands***

Vacant  + Part ial ly 
Vacant  + Potent ial ly 

Redevelopab le 
Lands

Gross Land Supply Acres Net Land Suply

Total Zone Area (Acres) 892.45 Total Parcel Area (Acres) 231.18 0.00 68.25 299.43
Rights-of-Way / No Parcel (Acres)** 498.87 Less Wetlands, Standing Water **** 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Parcel Area, Exclusive of R.O.W. (Acres) 393.58 Less Steep Slopes (>25 degrees)**** 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Parks (Acres) 0 Less Slide Areas**** 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Parcel Area, Exclusive of R.O.W. & Parks (Acres) 393.58 Total Parcel Area, Less Critical Deductions (Acres) 231.18 0.00 68.25 299.43
Less Unbuildable Fragments***** 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Gross Buildable Parcel Area (Acres) 231.18 0.00 68.25 299.43
Less Future Public Facilities & Infrastructure Set-Aside (25%) 0.00 0.00 0.00 74.86

Total Net Buildable Parcel Area (Acres) 231.18 0.00 68.25 224.57
Percent of Total Net Parcel Area in Zone (Acres) 59% 0% 17% 57%
Number of Net Buildable Parcels (or portions if split-zoned) 45 0 21 66

 
2 ATTACHED HOUSING ZONES* Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Total   

Gross Land Supply Acres Net Land Suply

Vacant  
Lands***

Part ial ly Vacant  
Lands***

Potent ial ly 
Redevelopab le 

Lands***

Vacant  + Part ial ly 
Vacant  + Potent ial ly 

Redevelopab le 
Lands

Total Zone Area (Acres) 26.69 Total Parcel Area (Acres) 9.24 0.00 0.92 10.16
Rights-of-Way (Acres)** 5.93 Less Wetlands, Standing Water **** 2.97 0.00 0.00 2.97

Total Parcel Area, Exclusive of R.O.W. (Acres) 20.76 Less Steep Slopes (>25 degrees)**** 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Parks (Acres) 0.29 Less Slide Areas**** 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Parcel Area, Exclusive of R.O.W. & Parks (Acres) 20.47 Total Parcel Area, Less Critical Deductions (Acres) 6.27 0.00 0.92 7.19
Less Unbuildable Fragments***** 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.01

Total Gross Buildable Parcel Area (Acres) 6.26 0.00 0.92 7.18
Less Future Public Facilities & Infrastructure Set-Aside (25%) 1.57 0.00 0.23 1.80

Total Net Buildable Parcel Area (Acres) 4.70 0.00 0.69 5.39
Percent of Total Net Parcel Area in Zone (Acres) 23% 0% 3% 26%
Number of Net Buildable Parcels (or portions if split-zoned) 46 0 2 48

3 COMMERCIAL ZONES* Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Total   

Gross Land Supply Acres Net Land Suply

Vacant  
Lands***

Part ial ly Vacant  
Lands***

Potent ial ly 
Redevelopab le 

Lands***

Vacant  + Part ial ly 
Vacant  + Potent ial ly 

Redevelopab le 
Lands

Total Zone Area (Acres) 296.61 Total Parcel Area (Acres) 29.87 0.00 23.74 53.61
Rights-of-Way (Acres)** 104.4 Less Wetlands, Standing Water **** 1.23 0.00 2.29 3.52

Total Parcel Area, Exclusive of R.O.W. (Acres) 192.21 Less Steep Slopes (>25 degrees)**** 0.52 0.00 0.49 1.01
Parks (Acres) 4.31 Less Slide Areas**** 0.74 0.00 1.08 1.82

Total Parcel Area, Exclusive of R.O.W. & Parks (Acres) 187.9 Total Parcel Area, Less Critical Deductions (Acres) 27.38 0.00 19.88 47.26
Less Unbuildable Fragments***** 0.31 0.00 0.01 0.32

Total Gross Buildable Parcel Area (Acres) 27.07 0.00 19.87 46.94
Less Future Public Facilities & Infrastructure Set-Aside (25%) 6.77 0.00 4.97 11.74

Total Net Buildable Parcel Area (Acres) 20.30 0.00 14.90 35.21
Percent of Total Net Parcel Area in Zone (Acres) 11% 0% 8% 19%
Number of Net Buildable Parcels (or portions if split-zoned) 122 0 71 193

4 INDUSTRIAL ZONES * Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Total   

Gross Land Supply Acres Net Land Suply

Vacant  
Lands***

Part ial ly Vacant  
Lands***

Potent ial ly 
Redevelopab le 

Lands***

Vacant  + Part ial ly 
Vacant  + Potent ial ly 

Redevelopab le 
Lands

Total Zone Area (Acres) 292.69 Total Parcel Area (Acres) 58.29 13.39 72.12 143.80
Rights-of-Way (Acres)** 23.65 Less Wetlands, Standing Water **** 32.61 0.00 17.28 49.89

Total Parcel Area, Exclusive of R.O.W. (Acres) 269.04 Less Steep Slopes (>25 degrees)**** 0.29 0.00 2.16 2.45
Parks (Acres) 0.24 Less Slide Areas**** 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Parcel Area, Exclusive of R.O.W. & Parks (Acres) 268.8 Total Parcel Area, Less Critical Deductions (Acres) 25.39 13.39 52.68 91.46
Less Unbuildable Fragments***** 1.50 0.00 4.26 5.76

Total Gross Buildable Parcel Area (Acres) 23.89 13.39 48.42 85.70
Less Future Public Facilities & Infrastructure Set-Aside (25%) 5.97 3.35 12.11 21.43

Total Net Buildable Parcel Area (Acres) 17.92 10.04 36.32 64.28
Percent of Total Net Parcel Area in Zone (Acres) 7% 4% 14% 24%
Number of Net Buildable Parcels (or portions if split-zoned) 29 1 12 42

5 INSTITUTIONAL ZONES* Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Total   

Gross Land Supply Acres Net Land Suply

Vacant  
Lands***

Part ial ly Vacant  
Lands***

Potent ial ly 
Redevelopab le 

Lands***

Vacant  + Part ial ly 
Vacant  + Potent ial ly 

Redevelopab le 
Lands

Total Zone Area (Acres) 518.15 Total Parcel Area (Acres) 40.86 0.00 0.00 40.86
Rights-of-Way (Acres)** 37.08 Less Wetlands, Standing Water **** 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Parcel Area, Exclusive of R.O.W. (Acres) 481.07 Less Steep Slopes (>25 degrees)**** 9.60 0.00 0.00 9.60
Parks (Acres) 72.75 Less Slide Areas**** 6.40 0.00 0.00 6.40

Total Parcel Area, Exclusive of R.O.W. & Parks (Acres) 408.32 Total Parcel Area, Less Critical Deductions (Acres) 24.86 0.00 0.00 24.86
Less Unbuildable Fragments***** 6.60 0.00 0.00 6.60

Total Gross Buildable Parcel Area (Acres) 18.26 0.00 0.00 18.26
Less Future Public Facilities & Infrastructure Set-Aside (25%) 4.57 0.00 0.00 4.57

Total Net Buildable Parcel Area (Acres) 13.70 0.00 0.00 13.70
Percent of Total Net Parcel Area in Zone (Acres) 3% 0% 0% 3%
Number of Net Buildable Parcels (or portions if split-zoned) 5 0 0 5

* See Methodology for Collapsed Zone definitions
** Rights-of-Way include Astoria Riverwalk rails-to-trails parcels
*** See Methodology for definitions of "Vacant", "Partially Vacant", and "Potentially Redevelopable" lands
**** See Methodology for detailed explanation of Critical Deductions.
***** "Unbuildable Fragments" are comprised of parcel fragments after Critical Deductions of .07 acres or less, or of unbuildable configurations (eg, long and narrow fragments).

*NOTE - All aquatic develelopment zoned parcel portions are water area only and as such are not traditionally 
developable. They are available for water-related uses, such as turning basins and boat anchorage.

FIGURE 3.4 - VACANT AND REDEVELOPABLE LANDS SUMMARY



44 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

[ BLANK ]



45

5
RECONCILING 
SUPPLY AND 
DEMAND
Comparing a forecast-driven demand 
scenario and a assessment of buildable lands 
is essential to understand Astoria’s ability to 
accommodate future growth without policy 
changes. This section of the report compares 
supply and demand estimates from previous 
sections to identify land surplusses or 
shortages.

The analysis suggests that there is sufficient vacant and redevelopable land 
in most zones to cover anticipated employment growth. The lone shortage 
occurs in institutional zones, where an extremely small percentage of current 
institutionally-zoned land is considered buildable. This implies that in the future, 
some currently unbuildable institutional lands may become buildable, additional 
non-institutional lands will be rezoned, or that some institutional uses will locate 
in other zones that allow the proposed activities. Figure 5.1 summarizes this 
analysis. 

FIGURE 5.1 - SUPPLY AND DEMAND RECONCILIATION

Note that much of the acreage in aquatic development zones is underwater, 
meaning that these areas are most appropriate for on-water uses (e.g. marinas, 
turning basins) or for development on pilings. 



46 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

[ BLANK ]



47

6
IMPLICATIONS 
FOR ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 
STRATEGY
The following themes are a starting point for 
the development of economic development 
goals, strategies and actions. They are drawn 
from a comprehensive review of data-driven 
trends, stakeholder engagement outcomes 
and the city’s vision. 

• Astoria’s powerful sense of place is one of greatest single assets to 
economic development, and must be maximally leveraged; sensitive 
cultivation of Astoria’s brand, and linkages with façade and public 
realm improvements, signage and wayfinding projects, social media 
outreach and other placemaking efforts are important to future economic 
development.

• Tourism and visitation will continue as economic drivers; opportunities 
exist for shoulder season expansion and diversification, though some 
new investment (for example, in additional downtown parking) may be 
required; tourism is symbiotic with the craft food and beverage industry, 
which is a traded cluster.

• An expansion of festivals and special events can draw outside dollars 
and can ensure that tourism does not unduly dilute the historic identify 
and sense of place in Astoria.

• The Port of Astoria is a critical economic driver for Astoria and the region, 
supporting several traded sector industry clusters and maintaining a 
significant amount of industrial land for established and emerging firms; 
the Port’s role in facilitating cruise ship visitation represents a new frontier 
in tourism and visitation that benefits local retailers; a potential trade war 
with China, specifically, and uncertainty over future trade policy, generally,  
could impact operations at the Port of Astoria; furthermore, the long-term 



48 ADVANCE ASTORIA: ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS

future of resource-related industries in the region is a challenge that the Port, along with the 
City as its partner, will need to grapple with.

• Seasonal commercial fishing work has become more stable due to individual transferable 
quotas, though many fisheries continue to decline; these fisheries also support work in 
science and education clusters, largely through the presence of researchers working for 
post-secondary institutions; resource-related industries will continue to exist in Astoria, but 
will need to adapt to social, economic and policy-related changes.

• Housing affordability and increased supply directly supports economic development, and 
the City will need to find solutions to real and perceived housing-related challenges in order 
to realize significant growth in target industries.

• Clatsop Community College, MERTS, Columbia Memorial Hospital and others anchor a 
strong “eds and meds” cluster that supports numberous private sector businesses and 
provides key services to residents; many of these institutions face significant uncertainty 
surrounding federal policy and funding.

• The City has a good reputation for working with small entrepreneurial businesses that could be 
improved further with one-stop shopping for new business resources; other entrepreneurial 
assets include the Astoria Sunday Market and a new makerspace; these resources offer an 
opportunity to incubate and scale new businesses in Astoria.

• Land supply is not an immediate issue, though constraints on exisitng vacant employment 
lands may require future rezoning, land preparation and assembly, development intensification 
and other strategies to get more productivity out of existing lands and ensure alignment 
between adopted code, market forces and growth opportunities.

• There is an opportunity for the outdoor recreation industry in Astoria given existing assets, 
such as ample forest land, existing visitation, proximity to large metros, etc.

• Some infrastructure improvements, notably in reliable, high speed internet access and clean 
water supply, may be necessary to ensure continued growth in target industries; internet 
access, in particular, could make it more feasible for new workers from large metros to 
telework, or for companies to relocate from larger metros to Astoria for quality of life.




























































	Agenda CC 6-19-2017
	Agenda Memo 6-19-2017
	5a CC Minutes May 30, 2017
	5b Arts and Culture Grants
	5c Community Org Grants
	5d Chamber Promote Astoria Funds
	5e ADHDA Promote Astoria Funds
	5f CEDR Promote Astoria Funds
	5g ABC Transcription Services Contract
	5h CSO Program Modeling Support
	5i Fuel System Replacement
	6a A17-01 Advance Astoria
	6a2
	6a3
	6a4
	6a5 Astoria_City_ELI_Vacant_Redev_Employment_Lands_v3_2016_0329-01
	6a6 CAI.Astoria_EDS_2017_0615
	6a7 Maps_00007
	6a8 CAI. Advance Astoria Economic Opportunities Analysis 2017 0502
	6a9
	6b Vacation of Alley 3115
	6c Bumble LLicense
	6d Riverwalk LLicense
	6e Lien Foreclosure
	6f FY Budget Adjustment
	6g Implementing Parks Fee

